ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 15, 2017
3:17 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Sam Kito, Chair
Represent ati ve Adam Whol, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Chris Birch
Representative Gary Knopp
Representative Coll een Sullivan-Leonard

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 110

"An Act relating to the practice of massage therapy; relating to
the Board of Massage Therapists; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 110

SHORT TI TLE: MASSAGE THERAPY LI CENSI NG, EXEMPTI ONS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) Kl TO

02/ 08/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 17 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 15/ 17 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REQ STER

DAVI D EDWARDS- SM TH, Chair

Al aska Board of Massage Therapists

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 110.

ANGELA BI RT, Chief Investigator

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 15, 2017



D vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
( DCBPL)

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmmunity & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 110.

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, St aff

Representative SamKito

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 110 on behal f of
Representative Kito, prine sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:17: 57 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO called the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Stutes, Birch, Knopp, Sullivan-Leonard, and Kito were
present at the call to order. Representative Wol arrived as

the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 110- MASSAGE THERAPY LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI ONS

3:18: 09 PM

CHAIR KITO announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 110, "An Act relating to the practice of massage
therapy; relating to the Board of Mssage Therapists; and
providing for an effective date."

3:19: 28 PM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff, Representative Sam Kito, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 110 on behalf of Representative Kito,
prime sponsor. She stated that the bill |anguage was brought
forward by the Board of Massage Therapists, which felt that
there were sonme | oopholes that needed to be tightened up. The
board was established in 2014 and has since discussed the issue
in many board neetings.

M5. KOENEMAN expressed that HB 110 would do nmany things. | t
would allow the board to adopt regulations governing nassage
t herapy establishnents. The bill would increase the nunber of

hours required for in-class supervised instruction and clinical
work from an approved massage school from 500 to 625 hours,

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 2- February 15, 2017



following closer to national standards. She noted that all
massage therapy schools in Alaska currently provide 750 hours or

nor e. The bill would reduce the required nunber of hours of
saf ety education on bl ood-borne pathogens from four hours to two
hours; the courses are two hours long, so nost |icensees have
been taking the sane course twice to neet the requirenent. She
expl ained that HB 110 would allow the board to issue exenptions
from licensing requirenents for people who submt an

application, pay a registration fee, and submt proof that they
neet the requirenents for the exenptions. The exenptions would
be valid for up to ten years or until the |icensee's scope of
practi ce has changed.

M5. KOENEMAN referred to AS 08.61.080, which lists exceptions.
She stated that HB 110 woul d renove paragraphs 7, 10, 11, and 13
from AS 08.61.080 and insert the paragraphs into new statutory
| anguage, which would require registration.

3:23:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  STUTES asked whet her the requirenments in
paragraphs 7, 10, 11, and 13 in current statute would be
exenpted in the bill.

3:23:33 PM

M5. KOENEMAN explained that current statue sets out exceptions
whi ch are not governed under massage therapy statutes. Section
3 of HB 110 outlines that those exceptions would be required to
register with the departnment but would not be governed or
regul ated by the board. She noted that the groups listed in the
exenptions, such as Rolfers or structural integrators, would not
need mneet licensing requirenents. The board would not have
oversight of the professions, but the groups would register wth
a nomnal fee to have their name and business included in a
dat abase. She explained that registering the groups would help
the investigative team wth the Departnent of Commerce,
Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) and Federal Bureau of
| nvestigations (FBI) to determne whether individuals are
licensed or wunlicensed. She stated that concerns of sex
trafficking and human trafficking have led to HB 110.

3:25: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked how many Rol fers are invol ved.

3:25:54 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2017



CHAIR KITO stated that there isn't a state database collecting
data for Rolfers - they are exenpt from statutory oversight.
Therefore, the nunber of Rolfers eligible to register is
undet er m ned.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked, "lIs a driver on this because there's
illegal sex trafficking going on, as opposed to ... people out
there getting ... Rolfed legitimately that haven't paid a

regi stration fee?"

CHAIR KITO infornmed that the board chair can better explain what
the changes are. He stated that Rolfing is one of several
exceptions currently in statute that would be reclassified under
HB 110.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked whether Rol fing would be incorporated
and would require a permt.

CHAIR KITO explained that the exceptions currently in statute
include 13 individual types of practices, several of which
include applying pressure by hand, and those exceptions are
being renoved and reclassified as exenptions. The exenptions
would require a practitioner to provide registration stating
what type of manipulation he/she practices and the |ocation of
the business. He stated that a registration fee would help take

care of the paperwork for filing the applications. The
regi stered individuals would still not be |icensed under Al aska
statute, but their businesses would exist in a database,

allowing investigators to know who has been registered as a
legitimate practitioner.

3:28:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked if the Board of Massage Therapists
asked the sponsor for legislation to expand the definition of
massage to include Rolfing and other practices.

CHAI R KI TO answer ed yes.

3:29: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked Ms. Koenenman who is asking for
the | egislation.

3:29:16 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 15, 2017



M5. KOENEMAN responded the Board of Massage Therapists. She
remar ked, "They approached us and had requested ... changes to
their statutes.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the board said it wanted
changes that would inpact massage therapists and wanted Rolfers
to be registered.

M5. KCENEMAN stated the changes were discussed in the board's
public neetings. The board determ ned that the |anguage of HB
110 gives investigators the tools necessary to do nore tinely
i nvesti gations.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked what the board's notivation is
for changing the Rolfers’ statutory classification. He
remarked, "Are they afraid that the sex traffickers are really
not them but the Rolfers, and so they're to divert attention to
t he Rol fers?"

3:30: 47 PM

CHAIR KITO stated the question mght be nore appropriate for the
chair of the Board of Massage Therapi sts.

3:30: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP nentioned that when people try to sel
sonething they freely throw out disparaging accusations. He
stated that the board is recomendi ng sonething and concerns
about sex trafficking, prostitution, and human trafficking have
been nenti oned. He cautioned that evidence should be provided
bef ore di sparagi ng a profession.

M5. KOENEMAN stated that she does not intend to disparage any
pr of essi on. She remarked, "There are concerns of sex
trafficking, and whether they are from these professions or
sonmebody el se that |lays hands on others, it's a way of having an
idea of who is authorized and who is registered with the state
to practice sonething in this scope.” She reiterated that she
does not want to disparage the profession in any way.

3:32: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE WOOL stated his understanding that the proposed
| egislation allows Rolfers and other nodalities to register in a

dat abase but not necessarily be a licensed nenber of a board
He asked whether a Rolfer with a statutory exenption is a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2017



licensed practitioner but does not have to neet the additiona
requi renents.

M5. KOENEMAN answered, "Wth the way the current statute is,

it's alnmbst like they don't exist in the world of nassage
therapy." She stated that there is no way to know who is
practicing and there 1is no oversight. In statute, the

professions don't fall under massage therapy, therefore there is
no oversight fromany state departnent at any |evel.

3:34:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL comented that with the current exception

Rolfers could nerely "hang a sign on the door" and practice
wi t hout any professional oversight, although there is oversight
for massage therapy. He stated that a conponent of HB 110 is to
conbat sex trafficking; and under the bill, anyone who states
that they practice nassage nmust prove they are |icensed.

M5. KOENEMAN stated that if anyone hangs a sign saying he/she is
a nmassage therapist and practices, he/she would need to be
regi stered and |icensed. There are provisions in statute for
unlicensed activity which lead to investigations and penalties.
Currently, Rolfers can practice Rolfing with a business |icense
and no other registration. The board does not currently have
t he ability to adopt regul ati ons gover ni ng nassage
establi shments, which is where there are concerns of sex
trafficking and human trafficking.

3:36: 59 PM

CHAIR KITO stated that current statute does not allow the
ability to track Rolfing. Anyone under the existing exceptions
can practice without the board s know edge or oversight. He
explained that there is an interest in providing the ability to
register activities and addresses of sone nodalities, but they
woul d not be overseen, tracked, or licensed.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL noted that HB 110 would provide exenptions
to non-massage nodalities but they would have to register. He
asked if such businesses could practice wthout the exenption.
He remarked, "They're not a licensed practitioner of massage
t herapy; they practice another nodality; they don't wsh to
apply for an exenption; they're non-registered; they just have a
shingle..."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2017



CHAI R KI TO deened that the departnment can better answer how they
woul d enforce the statute.

3:38:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if any fees are currently charged to
the other nodalities.

3:38: 57 PM

M5. KOENEMAN answered no. The only established fees are for
massage t her apy.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if HB 110 would inplenment fees to
the other nodalities with registration

M5. KOENEMAN responded that there would be nominal registration
fees, but not Ilicensing fees |like those associated with the
massage t herapi sts.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if the fees are indicated in the
bill.

M5. KOENEMAN drew attention to HB 110, section 4, lines 12 and
13, which would allow the departnment to set fees for exenption
applications and renewal s. She stated that the fee is separate
fromthe license for massage therapists; it is an additional fee
that the departnent would be authorized to establish.

3:40: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH stated that HB 110 woul d broaden the reach
[of governnent] in a tine of a $3 billion deficit. He said the
stacks of comunication the commttee has received are a good
indication that the non-nmassage world has operated fine. He
asked, "Do we really need to be pushing out into this?" He
noted that the bill is likely not a revenue opportunity without
knowi ng how many people the bill would affect. He stated his
concern that this bill would require a fair anount of tine.

CHAIR KITO stated that HB 110 has no additional cost. He noted
that the bill has not been fully presented. He urged nenbers to
refrain from nmaking final conclusions on the bill wuntil al

i nformati on has been presented.

3:42: 02 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 15, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE ~ JOSEPHSON asked if there is a national
organi zation that collects information on structural integration
speci al i sts.

M5. KOENEMAN of fered her understanding that there is a nationa
organi zati on of Rol fers.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if the inpetus for the bill was
to have a registry to separate the "true" structural integration
specialists from the not truly trained person. He asked why
there wasn't a separate bill to register other "laying on hands”
i ndi vi dual s.

M5. KOENEMAN responded that in the past there has been

di scussion of Rolfers creating their own board. The
conversations which established [the Board of Massage Therapy]
i ncluded discussions of whether or not to include Rolfers. In

many other states, other nodalities are included in nassage
therapy statutes. She noted that it's not unconmon for a person
to be licensed as both a nassage therapist and a Rolfer since
they are simlar professions. She stated that the board chair
can better speak to the inpetus for HB 110.

3:44: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if [the non-nassage nodalities] would
be subject to investigation if they were registered but not
regul at ed. He commented that businesses are required to have a
business license in order to "hang the shingle." He asked if
regi stration could be done through the |icensing process.

V. KCENEMAN deferred t he first guestion regar di ng
investigations to the departnent. Responding to the question
regarding business |icenses, she said that when individuals
apply for a business license, they get to choose their North
American Industry Cassification System (NAICS) code. Sorting
through the many business licenses creates a burden for
i nvestigators.

3:46: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SULLI VAN- LEONARD asked if different nodalities
are under one distinction in the Lower 48 and where that is
happeni ng. She noted that Rolfers mnust go through distinct
training to be certified, and they put a lot of tine and energy
into their craft.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2017



M5. KOENEMAN stated that she is working on conpiling a |list and
will share it with the commttee upon conpl etion.

3:48: 07 PM
DAVI D EDWARDS- SM TH, Chair, Al aska Board of WMassage Therapi sts,

testified in support of HB 110. He stated that in February of
2015, the Alaska Board of Massage Therapists had its first

meet i ng. The board took seriously the advisenent of Dr. Sara
Chanbers to discuss the process of reviewing the statutes and
determining the best way to instill refinement in the new | aws.
He expressed that the board felt it was necessary to refine
statute by addr essi ng nmassage establ i shments, i censing
exenpti ons, entry-1|evel educati on requirenents, and

inconsistencies wth the standards in blood-born pathogen
educati on. He said that the board s establishnment has led to a
better understandi ng of ways to serve Al askans.

MR. EDWARDS- SM TH stated that the board is aware of exploitation

of the nmassage therapy profession for illegal practice of human
and sex trafficking, which is prevalent throughout the United
St at es. He cautioned that the problem wll continue if
institutions of law enforcenment are not pernmitted the critical
tools to addressing the issue. In 2015, state investigations
and the FBI identified 29 illicit establishnments in Anchorage

and up to 130 throughout Al aska. He noted that several agencies
have comrunicated their concern on the issue of human and sex
trafficking at board neetings. The agencies include: t he
Al aska Wage and Hour [Administration], DCBPL's Investigations
Unit, the FBI, and the Federation of State Massage Therapy
Boar ds. The board determ ned through research and discussion
that it was necessary for the protection of the public to work
to provide | aw enforcenent agencies to the tools to address this
i ssue.

MR. EDWARDS- SM TH stated that requiring nassage establishnents
to register wuld enable state and federal investigation
agencies to hold the owner of an establishnment accountable for
crimnal activities. Under current statute, investigators are
only able to hold massage therapists - who are often victins -
accountable for crimnal activities. The cycle of human and sex
trafficking remains unbroken until the business owner is legally
accountable for his/her establishnment's activities.

3:50: 54 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 15, 2017



VR. EDWARDS- SM TH expressed that the board has drafted
regul ations to ensure that there is no inpact on establishnents

owned by I|icensed massage therapists. The owners have been
vetted with fingerprinting and background checks, which are
necessary protocols in the industry. Omers of nmassage
establishments will be required to maintain local, state, and

federal standards of health and safety and operate in a nmanner
that ensures public protection. He remarked:

As far as exenptions, wth the necessary statutory

change to licensing establishments, we |ooked to
address | oopholes that have been known to be or have
the potential of exploitation by illegal practices in

the massage industry. After careful consideration of
information presented by the massage therapy boards
from around the United States through the federation
of massage therapy board and public testinony, the
board determned that a strengthening of existing
exenption language was in the interest of public
prot ection.

MR. EDWARDS-SM TH stated that the board determned that two
exenptions required a strengthening of |anguage to prevent
illegal exploitation of existing statute. The current exenption
| anguage for reflexology and structural integration allows any
acting practitioner to claim an exenption by defining his/her
practice as only involving the hands and feet or as a structural
i nt egrator. Ref | exol ogy was not defined in statute and did not
require proof of <credentials. He expressed that research
denonstrated that acting practitioners could avoid |icensure
with a non-professional public nenbership to the Internationa
Association of Structural Integrators (1ASl). The board
determ ned that public protection required <closing such
| oophol es. The board al so determ ned that exenptions involving
an act of touch nust be registered with the division to provide
a resource for investigators to take appropriate action in the

event of suspected illegal activity. The board determ ned that
changes in education requirenments are necessary for consistency
with the skill conponents of entry-Ilevel education. The board

reviewed a study of entry analysis which resulted in the change
to 624-hour school prograns to prepare graduates for safe and
conpetent practice. The board recognized that the four hour
requi renent for bl ood-borne pathogen courses was unnecessary.

3:54:18 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 15, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the board decided to
engage in an effort to review practices of reflexology and
structural integration and include them in the concern of sex
trafficking.

MR. EDWARDS- SM TH stated the board was targeting the exenptions
that utilized touch, listed as paragraphs 7, 10, 11, and 13 of
AS 08. 61. 080. He stated that no profession was singled out
there are four exenptions for which registration was being
required.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that this is a new board. He
asked whether the board was concerned that other trades were
negatively coloring reputable nmassage therapy practitioners. He
stated that he does not understand why the board reached outside
its field to discuss regulating or registering soneone else's
trade.

MR. EDWARDS-SM TH stated there is a disagreenent about whether
structural integrators are outside the massage therapy industry.
The Federation for State Massage Therapy Boards had a job task
anal ysis which confirned that somatic therapists, Rolfers, and
structural integrators were interchangeable. The data also
confirmed that body workers and neta practitioners perfornmed and
viewed the inportance of tasks nearly identically to nassage
t her api st s.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON of fered his inpression that a Rolfer is
a professional in the field of nedicine, and a nmasseuse is a
di fferent kind of professional.

3:57:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES comrented that the bill is overreaching

She referred to a letter which indicated that there is such a
large differential between massage therapists and the other
nodal ities that massage therapists instituted a |awsuit agai nst

a Rolfer professing to be a massage therapist. She offered her
opinion that using the FBI or |law enforcenment is an excuse for
overreach. She asked why the board felt the "need to control

everyone in the playground.™

3:59: 36 PM

MR. EDWARDS-SM TH stated that he disagrees that the bill is
over r eachi ng. He nmentioned that there 1is concern, not
specifically with Rolfing, but with all exenptions. Col or ado

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 15, 2017



had 30 cases of exploitation of it reflexology exenption |ast
year. He said that the board is not |ooking to control the
exenptions, but tighten the |anguage. Ri ght now, anyone could
hang a shingle and be exenpt from regulation, and 1,000
licensees wouldn't have to renew their license if they changed
their description to structural integrator. He added that
structural integration coursework is conmon in nmassage therapy
schools. He stated that the term "structural integrator” is not
a registered trademark |ike Rolfing: Rolfing is a trademark
bodywor k technique that has nmade its way into exenption |anguage
in massage therapy statutes in an effort to distinguish the
br and. He offered his understanding that "there are 6 states
out of 46 states that have Rolfing exenptions.” He expressed
that the Rolfing exenptions in these states were based on
conclusions from experts in the professions, but were based on
| obbying efforts by I ASI.

4:02:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE STUTES offered her interpretation of M. Edwards-

Smth's coments. She anal yzed that he wants other professions
to conformto the sanme regulations that he has to conformto and

have the sane educational requirenents. She conpared it to
nurses conplying with doctor's regulations or being forced to
get nore schooli ng. She expressed that the bill does not nake

sense to her, but she would keep her m nd open.
4:03: 21 PM

CHAIR KITO stated that there isn't tinme for public testinony
today; it will be heard at a future neeting.

4:04:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP referred to the 29 cases in Anchorage and
130 in Al aska nentioned by M. Edwards-Smth. He asked if the
cases were infractions on licensed facilities and what type of
facilities they were. He questioned whether the regulations in
place are working if the infractions were at |icensed massage
facilities.

4. 05: 08 PM
ANCELA BIRT, Chief Investigator, Division of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing (DCBPL), Departnment of

Commerce, Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnment (DCCED), responded to
Representative Knopp's question, stating that the nunbers refer

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 15, 2017



to facilities identified by the Anchorage Police Departnent or

the FBI as potential human trafficking |ocations. The
facilities are not all being investigated and are not
necessarily where infractions occurred. Most of the facilities

are advertised as nassage operations. She stated that there is
currently no law that would allow inspections of the facilities
in question. The law requires individual practitioners to be
licensed, but there is no ability to hold the facility owner
account abl e. She expressed that there are many facilities
across the state that should be investigated, but law limts
doi ng so. She reiterated that the nunbers do not reflect
infractions, but do reflect facilities identified as potenti al
human and sex trafficking operations operating under the guise
of massage parl ors.

4:07: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked whether registered but not regul ated
facilities would be investigated by Ms. Birt and DCBPL under HB
110, and asked if the investigative charges would be billed to
t he Board of Massage Therapi sts.

M5. BIRT stated that the nunber and types of conplaints are so
varied that she cannot answer definitively. She said that she
is not sure if the areas of practice [in the conplaints] would
be under the jurisdiction of the board for investigative costs.
She noted that if a Rolfer was suspected of practicing nassage
therapy, then the division wuld have to l|ook at potential
unlicensed practice and the cost would go to the board.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP stated that he has been to massage
therapists and Rolfers and has never acknow edged simlarities
between the two professions. He asked how M. Edwards-Smth
designated simlarities.

4:09: 23 PM

MR. EDWARDS-SM TH stated that the simlarity lies in the idea
that Rolfing is a brand. The United States Patent Ofice
granted service nmark rights for the word "Rolfing" to the Rolf
Institute of Structural Integration in 1979. It is a trademark
brand of a massage nodality - a nodality that wutilizes the
mani pul ati on of soft tissue. He noted that there are nany

techni ques that are brands. He drew attention to |anguage [from
the International Association of Structural Integrators (IASl),
whi ch read as follows, original punctuation included]:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 15, 2017



| ASI stays on top of the latest efforts in |egislation
and we do our best to inform and affect the |aw when
possi ble. Qur nenber surveys have concluded that
structural integrators want the profession to be
recognized as a distinct form of health care. Though
this is a difficult and tinme-consumng task, I1ASI is
commtted to clinbing this nmountain with patience and
per sever ance.

| ASI works for legislation which will allow structura
integrators to maintain their unique place in the
heal thcare field, practicing free of unnecessary
restrictions.

MR. EDWARDS- SM TH asked what the difference is between massage
therapy and Rolfing. He stated that nassage therapy is a
conplex profession with nmany tiers and |levels of conpetency.
Structural integrators also have a high standard and |evel of
conpetency. He expressed that the board is asking to strengthen
| anguage, asking [other nodality practitioners] to be certified,
and asking to close a | oophole that allows anyone to claimto be
a structural integrator. He stated that structural integrators
and | obbyists notified the board that they support nmaintaining
t he exenpti on.

4:12:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked whether a massage facility of
guestionable activity involved police action before the board
was creat ed. He asked if MVs. Birt was involved in
investigations related to nassage therapy prior to the board's
exi stence.

4:13: 08 PM
M5. BIRT responded that the division was not invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL assessed that the |icensing board was
created in response to discussion of illicit massage parlors
becom ng places where sex trafficking happened as an effort to
tighten up the industry and legitimze those practicing
legitimate mnmassage. Now a board investigator is called to
investigate a potentially illegitimte nassage facility. He
noted that now that there is a board, an activity breaking the
sanme | aws has different jurisdiction.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 15, 2017



M5. BIRT responded that there is still a law enforcenent
conponent of any investigation, but HB 110 would all ow the board
to visit the locations and ask for <credentials for mnassage
t herapi sts operating there. She remarked, "lInstead of holding
the trafficking victins accountable for unlicensed practice or
not being able to close down the shop but sinply stop that one
person, the state could then close that facility.”

4:14: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if that is the result of the Board of
Massage Therapists or of HB 110.

MR. EDWARDS- SM TH answered that it is based on the provisions of
HB 110.

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL noted that the bill has not yet been
enact ed. He assessed that the massage industry has been
affected by the sex trafficking conponent, which was one of the
notivations for creating the board. He asked if there has been
simlar activity with Rolfing.

M5. BIRT answered, "Not to ny know edge."
4:15: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH stated that it seens police action has been
happening in massage parlors; Rolfers haven't been the source of
illicit activity. He offered his opinion that it mght be
better to |eave the matter aside. He offered his understanding
that the massage therapy and Rolfing businesses all have to be
licensed by the state and are legitimate businesses in that
sense. He asked if Rolfing conpetes wth massage therapy and is
vi ewed as conpetition for providing a simlar service.

MR. EDWARDS-SM TH offered his view that HB 110 is a neans of
closing an exploitable |oophole. He stated that HB 110 should
have no effect on Rolfers. He stated that the board' s intention
is to change statute to limt individuals with no background in
massage therapy from hanging up a sign, practicing as a
structural integrator, and avoiding |icensure. He stated that
it is in the view of public protection to provide oversight to
ensure that woul dn't happen.

REPRESENTATIVE BIRCH noted that the businesses nust have

busi ness licenses but don't fall under the purview of the Board
of Massage Therapi sts.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 15- February 15, 2017



MR. EDWARDS- SM TH agr eed. He added that ensuring that a Rolfer
is certified would assure the public that the person has net the
m ni mum st andards in his/her profession and are certified.

CHAI R KI TO announced that HB 110 was hel d over.

4:18: 30 PM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:19 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 15, 2017



